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고등학교 졸업학력 검정고시 영어 개정교육
실용영어 I : 생활영어편

- 생활영어 1부 

◈ 안부를 물을 때
   How are you doing? (요즘 어떠세요?)
   How are  you getting along these days? (요즘 어떻게 지내십니까?)
   How's it going? (어떻게 지내십니까?)
   Is everything all right? / What's up? (별일 없으세요?)

◈ 가족의 건강을 물을 때
   How's your family? / How's the family? (가족들은 모두 건강하십니까?)
   How are you and your family? (당신과 당신 가족들은 건강하십니까?)
  

◈ 오랜만의 만남
   How have you been? (어떻게 지내셨습니까?)
   How have you been doing? (어떻게 지내 오셨습니까?)
   I haven't seen you for a long time. (오랜만입니다.)
   Hi, long time no see. (안녕, 오랜만이야.)
   It's been a long time, hasn't it? (오랜만이군요.)
   It's nice (or good) to see you again. (다시 보니 좋군요.)

◈ 별일 없습니다.
   Nothing special. (=Nothing much.) (특별한 일 없습니다.)
   Same as usual. (항상 그렇습니다.)
 

◈ 자기소개를 하다.
   Let me introduce myself. (제 소개를 하겠습니다.)
   How do you do? My name is Kim Chul-su (처음 뵙겠습니다. 저는 김철수라고 합니다.)
   I'm Lee Min-su and glad to meet you. (저는 이 민수입니다. 만나서 반갑습니다.)
   Pleased to meet you. I'm Jack. (만나서 반갑습니다. 저는 잭입니다.)
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◈ 기분을 나타내는 표현
   Glad to hear it. (그 말을 들으니 매우 기쁩니다.)
   I'm pleased (or delighted) to hear that. (그 말을 들으니 기쁩니다.)
   I'm very glad to see you. (당신을 만나서 매우 기쁩니다.)
   Sure, with my pleasure. / Yes, I'd love to. (네, 좋습니다.)
   Good idea! / That would be nice! (좋은 생각입니다!)
   What a relief! (휴우, 다행이다.)
   It's a relief to hear that. / I'm relieved to hear it. (그 말을 들으니 안심이 됩니다.)
   What a surprise! (깜짝이야!) That's amazing! (정말 놀랍다!)
   That's incredible! / Incredible! (믿을 수 없어!)
   I was surprised to hear that. (그 말을 듣고 놀랐습니다.)
   I was shocked by the accident. (그 사고에 충격을 받았습니다.)
   Are you kidding? / Are you serious? (정말이에요?)
   That's new to me. (그것은 금시초문입니다.)
   Good! / That's great! / That's terrific! (굉장하군요!)
   Sounds great! (훌륭해요!)

◈ 슬프고 실망했을 때
   I'm feeling sad. (저는 슬픕니다.)
   I feel miserable. (저는 너무 슬퍼요.)
   I am not in a good mood. (저는 기분이 좋지 않아요.)
   I'm depressed. / I feel really down. / I've got the blues. (저는 우울합니다.)
   I'm disappointed. (실망했어요.)
   I'm disappointed at you. (너에게 실망했다.)
   He really let me down. (그는 정말 나를 실망시켰다.)
 

◈ 동정할 때
   That's a pity. / That's too bad. / I'm sorry to hear that. (안됐군요.)
   What a pity! (불쌍해라!)
   Don't be depressed. (낙심하지 마세요.)
   I'm on your side. (저는 당신편입니다.)
   I understand what you're going through. (당신의 고통을 이해합니다.)
 

◈ 걱정해줄 때
   What's the matter with you? (무슨 일이지요?)
   Is something wrong with you? (당신에게 잘못된 일이 있습니까?)
   What's wrong? (뭐가 잘못됐습니까?)
   Is everything okay? (모든 것이 좋습니까?)
   Are you all right? (괜찮습니까?)
   What's bothering you? (무슨 걱정거리라도 있습니까?)
   Are you in some kind of trouble? (무슨 곤란한 일이라도 있으십니까?)
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◈ 답례할 때
   Thank you (or Thanks) for everything. (모든 일에 감사드립니다.)
   Thank you (or Thanks) for helping me. / You've been a big help. (큰 도움이 되었습니다.)
   Thank you (or Thanks) for your invitation. (초대해 주셔서 감사합니다.)
   Thank you (or Thanks) for coming to see me. (마중 나와 주셔서 감사합니다.)
   Thank you. That's very kind (or nice) of you. (감사합니다. 정말 친절하시군요.)
   I appreciate your kindness. (친절에 감사드립니다.)
   I can’t thank you enough. (너무나 감사드려요.)
   How can I ever repay you? (어떻게 보답하면 좋을까요?)
  

◈ 인사말에 답할 때
   It's my pleasure. / Don’t mention it. / Any time.
   You're welcome. / Not at all. / Oh, it's nothing. (천만에요.)
   

◈ 사과할 때
   Sorry. (미안합니다.)
   I'm very (or so) sorry. (정말로 죄송합니다.)
   Sorry, Are you all right? (미안합니다. 괜찮습니까?)
   Forgive me for being late. / I'm sorry I'm late. (늦어서 미안합니다.)
   I'm sorry to have kept you waiting. (기다리게 해서 죄송합니다.)
   I'm sorry to have troubled you. (폐를 끼쳐 죄송합니다.)
   I apologize for being rude. (무례하게 군것을 사과드립니다.)

◈ 사과에 답하다.
   That's all right. (괜찮습니다.)
   It doesn't matter. (문제될 것 없습니다.)
   I don't mind at all. / Never mind. / Forget it. / No problem. (괜찮습니다.)

◈ 승낙할 때
   Sure. (물론이죠.) OK. / All right. (좋아요.) 
   Why not? (안될게 뭐 있겠어요? - 물론이죠.)
   Yes, I'd be happy to. (예, 기꺼이 하겠습니다.)
   No, not at all. (아니오, 괜찮습니다.)
   No, go ahead. (아닙니다. 어서 하십시오.)
   I'll do what I can. (할 수 있는 한 해보겠습니다.)
   I'll do my best. (최선을 다하겠습니다.)
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◈ 거절
   No, thank you. (고맙지만 됐어요.)
   No, I don't think I can make it. (아니오, 할 수 없을 것 같군요.)
   I'd rather not. (안 하는 것이 좋을 것 같습니다.)
 

◈ 가격, 요금
   How much is it? / How much do I owe you? / How much does it cost? (얼마입니까?)
   What's the price? / What's the charge? (가격은 얼마입니까?)
   How much is the fare? (요금(교통운임)은 얼마입니까?)

◈ 레스토랑 
   What would you like to try? (무엇을 드시겠습니까?)
   What shall I order for you? (무엇을 주문할까요?)
   Do you prefer meat or seafood? (고기를 좋아하세요, 아니면 해산물을 좋아하세요?)
   Do you like meat? (고기요리를 좋아하십니까?)
   Anything you like? (뭔가 좋아하는 것이 있습니까?)

◈ 음료를 권하다.
   Would you like something to drink? (뭔가 마실 것을 드릴까요?)
   Can I get you a drink? (마실 것을 드릴까요?)
   What would you like to drink? (무엇을 마시고 싶으세요?)
   How about a refill? (한잔 더 어떠십니까?)

◈ 확실하게
   Of, course. (물론입니다.)
   Sure. (틀림없습니다.)
   I'm positive. (확신합니다.)
   It must be. (분명합니다.)
  

◈ 애매하게
   Maybe. (그럴지도 모릅니다.)
   I suppose so. (아마 그럴 겁니다.)
   I hope so. (그러기를 바랍니다.)
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◈ 동의를 표시
   Yes, I think so, too. (저도 그렇게 생각합니다.)
   I agree with you. (당신에게 동의합니다.)
   So am I. / So do I. (저도 그렇습니다.)
   Yes, that's what I mean. (예, 그것이 제가 생각하는 것입니다.)
   That's true (or right). / That's it. / Exactly. / Absolutely. (바로 그것입니다.)
   Fine. / Good. / Marvelous. (좋아요.)
   That's a good idea. / That'll be fine. / That sounds good. (그것 참 좋은 생각입니다.)
   Incredible! / That's great! (정말로 굉장하군요!)
   That sounds interesting. (재미있을 것 같군요)

◈ 이해할 수 없을 때
   What do you mean? (어떤 의미입니까?)
   What does that mean? (그것은 어떤 의미입니까?)
   I don't understand clearly. (잘 모르겠습니다.)
   Sorry, but I cannot understand what you said. (미안합니다만, 말씀하신 것을 잘 모르겠습니다.)
   I don't understand what you mean. (말씀하시는 것을 잘 모르겠습니다.)
   Sorry, I can't understand. / I am sorry I don't follow you. (죄송합니다만, 모르겠습니다.)

◈ 다시 한 번 말해 달라고 하다.
   Could you tell me again? / I beg your pardon? / Pardon? (한 번 더 말씀해 주시겠습니까?)
   Would you mind saying it once more? / Could (or Can) you say it again? 
   (그것을 한 번 더 말씀해 주시겠습니까?)
   Will you explain it again? (그것을 한 번 더 설명해 주시겠습니까?)
   Please repeat it again. (한 번 더 그것을 말씀해 주십시오.)
   Can you say that again? / Would you please say it? (그것을 한 번 더 말해 주시겠습니까?)
   Could you speak more slowly? (좀 더 천천히 말씀해 주시겠습니까?)
   Please speak slowly. (천천히 말씀해 주십시오.)
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- 생활영어 2부 

◈ 제안 및 응답하기

M : Hi, Tim. Let's play soccer.
W : Sounds great!
M : Shall  we meet at the park at five?
W : OK. See you there.

M : 안녕, 팀. 축구하자.
W : 그거 좋은 생각인데.
M : 우리 공원에서 5시에 만날까?
W : 좋아. 거기서 보자.

W : Let's go swimming.
M : Oh no. I can't go swimming.
W : Why not?
M : I don't know how to swim.
W : Don't worry. I can teach you.

W : 수영하러 가자.
M : 안 돼. 수영하러 갈 수 없어.
W : 왜 안 돼?
M : 수영할 줄 몰라.
W : 걱정 마. 내가 가르쳐 줄게.

W : Hello, Mike. This is Cathy.
M : Hi, Cathy. What's up?
W : Would you like to go to the concert on Sunday?
M : Sorry, I can't. I have to study for the English test.
W : That's okay. Maybe next time.

W : 여보세요, 마이크. 나 캐시야.
M : 안녕, 캐시. 무슨 일이야?
W : 일요일에 그 콘서트에 가지 않을래?
M : 미안하지만, 안되겠어. 나는 영어 시험에 대비해서 공부를 해야만 해.
W : 괜찮아. 다음에 가지 뭐.
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◈ 과거의 한 일 나타내기

M : What did you do on Saturday?
W : I played tennis with my friends.

M : 토요일에 뭐했니?
W : 친구들과 테니스 했어.

W : What did you do last Sunday, Joon?
M : I surfed the Internet, and then I read a book. What about you, Jenny?
W : I went shopping.

W : 지난 일요일에 뭐 했니, 준?
M : 인터넷을 검색했어, 그리고 나서 책을 읽었어. 넌 뭐 했니, 제니야?
W : 난 쇼핑 갔어.

M : Did you enjoy dinner last night?
W : It was really bad. I don't want to talk about it.
M : Come on! Tell me.
W : It was terrible. The service was slow, the soup was cold, and even the waiter was bad.
M : What is the name of the restaurant? I will not go there.

M : 지난 밤 저녁식사 즐거웠니?
W : 정말 안 좋았어. 나는 그것에 대해서 말하고 싶지 않아.
M : 어서! 말해줘.
W : 그건 끔찍했어. 서비스는 느렸고, 스프는 차가웠어, 그리고 심지어 웨이터도 안 좋았어.
M : 그 식당의 이름이 뭐니? 나는 그곳에 가지 않을래.

M : Hi, Nancy. How was your summer vacation?
W : It was wonderful. I watched a lot of movies, read some interesting books, 
    and also exercised a lot.
M : Did you visit your grandmother?
W : Of course I did. I had a good time with her. I will visit her again next vacation.

M : 안녕, 낸시. 너의 여름 방학은 어땠니?
W : 아주 좋았어. 나는 많은 영화를 봤고, 재미있는 책도 좀 읽었어, 
    그리고 운동도 많이 했어.
M : 너의 할머니를 방문했니?
W : 물론 그랬지. 나는 그녀와 좋은 시간을 보냈어. 다음 방학에 그녀를 다시 방문할 거야.
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◈사물의 위치 묻고 대답하기

M : Where's my bag?
W : Your bag? There, on the sofa.
M : Oh, here it is. Thanks, Mom.

M : 내 책가방이 어디 있지?
W : 책가방? 거기, 소파 위에 있잖아.
M : 아, 여기 있구나. 엄마, 고마워요.

◈ 물건 찾기

W : The movie is starting. Let's go inside.
M : Wait! I can't find my ticket. It was in my pocket.
W : You're kidding!
M : No, I'm not. I can't find it.

W : 영화가 곧 시작해. 안으로 들어가자.
M : 잠깐! 나는 나의 표를 찾을 수가 없어. 그것은 내 주머니 안에 있었는데.
W : 너 농담하고 있는 거지!
M : 아니. 나는 그것을 찾을 수 없어.

W : We're late. Hurry up.
M : Wait, I can't find my key.
W : Did you check on the desk?
M : Yes, I did. It isn't there. 
     I already checked under the desk and under the chair. But I couldn't find it.
W : How about the bed?
M : Oh, you're right. It's on the bed next to my bag. Thanks

W : 우리 늦었어. 서둘러.
M : 잠깐만, 나는 나의 열쇠를 찾을 수가 없어.
W : 책상 위는 확인했니?
M : 응. 거기엔 없어.
     나는 이미 책상 아래와 의자 아래를 확인했어. 하지만 찾을 수가 없어.
W : 침대는 어때?
M : 오, 네가 맞았어. 그건 내 가방 옆에 있는 침대 위에 있어. 고마워.
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◈ 길안내, 교통수단

W : Can you help me?
M : Yes, ma'am. What can I do for you?
W : I want to go to City Hall.
M : Please take the line No. 2, the green line.

W : 날 좀 도와주겠니?
M : 네, 뭘 도와드릴까요?
W : 시청에 가려고 하는데.
M : 2호선을 타시면 되요.

W : Excuse me, how can I get to the post office?
M : Go one block and turn right.
W : Go one block and turn right?
M : Yes. It's on your left next to the bank
W : Okay. Thank you very much.

W : 실례합니다, 우체국을 어떻게 가야 하나요?
M : 한 블럭 가서 우회전 하세요.
W : 한 블록 가서 우회전요?
M : 네. 그것은 은행 옆 당신의 왼쪽에 있습니다.
W : 알겠습니다. 정말 감사합니다.

W : Excuse me, which bus goes to City Hall?
M : Number twenty-one. It will come in thirty minutes.
W : Thirty minutes?
M : Yes, but it only takes ten minutes on foot. It's not far from here.
W : Thank you. I'll walk there.

W : 실례합니다, 어떤 버스가 시청으로 가나요?
M : 21번이에요. 그건 30분 후에 올 것입니다.
W : 30분이요?
M : 네, 하지만 걸어서 10분밖에 안 걸립니다. 여기서 멀지 않습니다.
W : 감사합니다. 걸어서 가야겠네요.
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◈ 물건사기

M : Mary, where did you buy the textbook?
W : I bought it at the bookstore
M : At the bookstore? It is 20% cheaper on the Internet.
W : Oh, really? I bought it for 10 dollars.
M : On the Internet, the book is only 8 dollars. I saved 2 dollars.
W : Next time, I will buy books on the Internet.

M : 메리, 너 그 교재 어디에서 샀니?
W : 나는 서점에서 그것을 샀어.
M : 서점에서? 그건 인터넷에서 20% 더 저렴해.
W : 오, 정말? 나는 그것을 10 달러에 구입했어.
M : 인터넷에서 그 책은 겨우 8 달러야. 나는 2 달러를 절약했어.
W : 다음번에, 나는 인터넷에서 책들을 구입할 거야.

M : May I help you?
W : Yes, I'm looking for a hair band.
M : How about this one?
W : I like the color. How much is it?
M : It's seven dollars.
W : OK, I'll take it. Here's ten dollars.
M : Thank you. Here's your change.

M : 도와드릴까요?
W : 네, 저는 머리띠를 찾고 있는 중입니다.
M : 이건 어떠세요?
W : 나는 그 색깔이 마음에 듭니다. 얼마에요?
M : 7 달러입니다.
W : 좋아요, 그걸로 살게요. 여기 10 달러 있습니다.
M : 감사합니다. 여기 거스름돈입니다.

W : May I help you, sir?
M : I'm looking for a shirt.
W : What kind of shirt do you want?
M : I want a long sleeve shirt with a striped pattern.
W : Oh, you like striped patterns? Then, how about this one?
M : It's nice. May I try it on?
W : No problem.

W : 도와드릴까요, 손님?
M : 저는 셔츠를 사려고 합니다.
W : 어떤 종류의 셔츠를 원하십니까?
M : 나는 줄무늬 패턴이 있는 긴 소매의 셔츠를 원합니다.
W : 오, 줄무늬 패턴을 좋아하세요? 그러면, 이거 어떠세요?
M : 좋네요. 제가 그것을 입어 봐도 될까요?
W: 네, 물론이죠.
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◈ 장래희망

W : Joon, what do you want to be in the future?
M : I want to be an astronaut. I want to go to the moon.
W : I want to be an artist. I'm good at drawing.

W : 준, 장래에 넌 뭐가 되고 싶니?
M : 난 우주 비행사가 되고 싶어. 달에 가보고싶어서.
W : 난 예술가가 되고 싶어. 난 그림을 잘 그려.

M : What do you want to be in the future?
W : When I was an elementary school student, I wanted to be a teacher.
M : And now?
W : Well now I really love animals, so I want to help them when they're sick.
M : Great. I hope your dream will come true.

M : 너는 장래에 무엇이 되기를 원하니?
W : 내가 초등학생이었을 때, 나는 선생님이 되기를 원했어.
M : 그리고 지금은?
W : 음, 지금 나는 동물을 정말 좋아해, 그래서 나는 그들이 아플 때 그들을 도와주고 싶어.
M : 멋지다. 너의 꿈이 실현되길 바래.

M : What do you want to be in the future?
W : Well, I'm interested in animals. So I'd like to work with animals. What about you?
M : I love reading and writing stories. 
    I want to write great stories for children, but my dad wants me to be a doctor.
W : A doctor?
M : Yes, but I want to be a writer.

M : 너는 장차 뭐가 되고 싶니?
W : 음, 나는 동물들에게 관심이 있어. 그래서 나는 동물들과 일하고 싶어. 너는 어때?
M : 나는 이야기들을 읽고 쓰는 것을 좋아해.
    나는 아이들을 위한 멋진 이야기들을 쓰고 싶어, 하지만 나의 아빠는 내가 의사가 되길 원하셔.
W : 의사?
M : 응, 하지만 나는 작가가 되고 싶어.
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◈ 학업, 시험

W : Did you finish your homework, Peter?
M : No, I didn't, Mom.
W : Please do it quickly.
M : If I finish it by nine o'clock, may I play my computer games?
W : Yes, you may

W : 너는 너의 숙제를 끝냈니, 피터?
M : 아니오, 엄마.
W : 제발 숙제를 빨리 하거라.
M : 내가 숙제를 9 시까지 끝내면, 컴퓨터 게임을 해도 되나요?
W : 그래, 그래도 된다.

W : I did very well on the test.
M : You're so smart.
M : I'm just lucky.

W : 나 시험을 아주 잘 봤어.
M : 넌 참 똑똑하구나.
W : 운이 좋았을 뿐이야.

M : Mina, I'm so[really, very] proud of you. You did a really good job on the English exam.
     Your grade was the best in our class.
W : Thank you. I'm also very happy now.
M : I hope you will always do your best.
W : Okay. It's hard, but I will try, Mr. Jackson.

M : 미나야, 나는 네가 정말 자랑스러워. 너는 영어 시험에서 정말 잘해 줬어.
    너의 성적이 우리 반에서 가장 좋단다.
W : 고맙습니다. 저도 역시 지금 매우 행복해요.
M : 나는 네가 항상 최선을 다하길 바란다.
W : 알겠습니다. 어렵지만, 노력할게요, 잭슨 선생님. 

M : Guess what, Mom?
W : What?
M : My grades went up. I got a hundred on my English test.
W : Good job! I'm proud of you.

M : 있잖아요, 엄마?
W : 뭔데?
M : 제 성적이 올랐어요. 제가 저의 영어시험에서 100 점을 받았어요.
W : 잘했구나! 나는 네가 자랑스럽구나.
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◈ 내일 뭐 할 거니?

M : What are you going to do tomorrow?
W : I have no idea.
M : Why don't you watch a movie with me?
W : Sounds fun.

M : 내일 뭐 할 거니?
W : 모르겠어.
M : 나랑 영화 보는 게 어때?
W : 재미있겠다.

M : What are you going to do this summer?
W : I'm going to London.
M : How long will you stay there?
W : I'll stay for a week.
M : Great! Have a good time!

M : 이번 여름에 무엇을 할 예정이니?
W : 나는 런던에 갈 거야.
M : 너는 그곳에 얼마나 오래 머물거니?
W : 나는 일주일 동안 머물거야.
M : 좋겠네! 좋은 시간 보내!

◈ 햄버거가게에서

W : May I help you?
M : A cheeseburger and a coke,, please.
W : For here or to go?
M : To go, please.

W : 뭘 드릴까요?
M : 치즈버거랑 콜라 주세요.
W : 드시고 가실 건가요, 아니면 포장해 드려요?
M : 포장해 주세요.

◈ 나도 그래 

W : I'm so hungry.
M : Same here. Do you want to make sandwiches?
W : Mm... my mouth is watering.

W :  나는 너무 베가고파.
M : 나도 그래. 샌드위치 만들어 먹을까?
W : 음... 군침 도는데.
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◈ 살빼기

W : I need to lose weight.
M : Good luck!

W : 나 살 좀 빼야겠어.
M : 행운을 빌어!

◈ 컴퓨터 사용

M : Jenny, are you good at computers?
W : Yes, I am. I do my homework on my computer. How about you, Joon?
M : I e-mail my friends.

M : 제니야, 너 컴퓨터 잘하니?
W : 응, 그래. 나는 컴퓨터로 숙제해. 준, 너는 어떠니?
M : 난 친구들한테 이메일을 해.     

◈ 맛이 어떠니?

W(1) : Try this, Jenny.  How do you like it?
W(2) : Mm, it's delicious.
W(1) : Do you want some more?
W(2) : No, thanks.  I'm on a diet.
   
W(1) : 이것 좀 먹어봐라 제니야.  맛이 어떠니?
W(2) : 음, 맛있어요.
W(1) : 더 먹을래?
W(2) : 고맙지만 사양할래요. 다이어트 중이예요.
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◈ 날씨

M : Hello, is Sujin there?
W : Yes, this is Sujin.
M : Hi, Sujin. This is Tom. I'm going to Jeju this afternoon. How's the weather there?
W : It's a little cloudy now, but it will be sunny this afternoon.

M : 여보세요, 거기 수진이 있나요?
W : 네, 제가 수진인데요.
M : 안녕, 수진아. 나 탐이야. 나는 오늘 오후에 제주에 갈 거야. 그곳 날씨는 어때?
W : 지금은 약간 흐리지만, 오늘 오후엔 화창해 질거야.

W : Joe, we can't ride bikes. It's raining outside.
M : Then let's take the subway.
W : I think I can drive my car.
M : Driving is a bad idea because it's raining too hard.
W : Okay. Let's go to the subway station.

W : 조, 우리는 자전거를 탈 수 없어. 밖에 비가 오고 있어.
M : 그러면 지하철을 타자.
W : 나는 차를 운전해서 가려고 생각했어.
M : 운전하는 건 별로 안좋은 생각이야, 왜냐하면 비가 너무 심하게 오고 있어.
W : 좋아. 지하철역으로 가자.

◈ 전화

W : Hello.
M : May I speak to Mr. Min?
W : Who's calling, please?
M : This is Joon.
W : Hi, Joon. Hold on, please.  It's for you, Mr. Min.

W : 여보세요.
M : 민 선생님과 통화할 수 있나요?
W : 누구세요?
M : 준이예요.
W : 안녕 준. 잠깐만 기다려. 민 선생님, 당신 전화에요.

M : Hello, may I speak to Jane, please?
W : Speaking.
M : Hi, this is Jerry. I'm afraid I can't come to your birthday party tonight. My mom is sick.
W : Oh, no! I'm sorry to hear that.

M : 여보세요, 제인과 통화할 수 있을까요?
W : 네, 전데요.
M : 안녕, 나 제리야. 유감스럽게도 오늘밤 너의 생일 파티에 갈 수 없을 것 같아. 엄마가 아프셔.
W : 오, 저런! 그 이야기를 들으니 안 됐구나.
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◈ 좋아하는 스포츠, 과목

M(1) : What kind of sports do you like?
M(2) : I like all kinds of sports.  But, I like soccer best.
M(1) : Would you like to join our soccer team?
M(2) : Yes, I'd love to.

M(1) : 어떤 스포츠 좋아하니?
M(2) : 난 모든 종류의 스포츠를 좋아해. 그렇지만 축구가 제일 좋아.
M(1) : 우리 축구팀에 들어올래?
M(2) : 그래 좋아.

W : Alex, what is your favorite subject?
M : Math.
W : Is it because you are good at math?
M : No. I'm good at science, but not at math.
W : Then, why do you like math so much?
M : Well, don't tell anybody. It's because my girlfriend is in the class.
W : Oh, I see.

W : 알렉스, 네가 가장 좋아하는 과목은 뭐니?
M : 수학이야.
W : 그건 네가 수학을 잘해서이기 때문이니?
M : 아니. 나는 수학이 아니라 과학을 잘해
W : 그럼, 왜 너는 수학을 그렇게 좋아하는 거니?
M : 음, 누구에게도 말하지 마. 그것은 내 여자 친구가 그 수업에 있기 때문이야.
W : 오, 그렇구나.
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◈ 표지판, 금지

W : We must not smoke in this area.
M : Why not?
W : Look at the sign.
M : Oh, they don't want anyone to smoke in this restaurant.
W : You're right.

W : 우리는 이 구역에서 담배를 피우면 안 돼.
M : 왜 안돼?
W : 저 표지판을 봐.
M : 오, 그들은 어떤 사람도 이 식당 안에서 담배 피우는 것을 원하지 않아.
W : 그래, 맞아.

M : Susan, what are you doing? Are you eating potato chips?
W : Yes. Do you want some?
M : Look at that sign. You can't eat here.
W : Oh! I see. I didn't know that.

M : 수잔, 너 뭐하고 있니? 너 감자칩을 먹고 있는 거니?
W : 응, 좀 먹을래?
M : 저 표지판을 봐. 너는 여기서 먹을 수 없어.
W : 오! 그렇구나. 나는 그걸 몰랐어.

W : John! Look at the road sign over there! It looks strange!
M : Yeah. It's a picture of an animal. What does that sign say[mean]?
W : Well, I think it means people have to be careful when they're driving in this area, right?
M : I guess so. There are many wild animals here in Australia.

W : 존! 저기에 있는 도로 표지판을 봐! 그것은 이상해보여!
M : 그러게. 그건 동물의 사진이야. 저 표지판은 뭘 나타내는 거지?
W : 글쎄, 내 생각에는 사람들이 이 지역에서 운전할 때 조심해야 한다는 의미인거 같아, 그렇지?
M : 나도 그런거 같아. 여기 호주에는 많은 야생 동물들이 있어.

◈ 안부

M : Hi, Yumi. Long time no see.
W : Hey, Steve. What do you do these days?
M : I teach students at an elementary school. What about you?
W : Oh, I work at an animal hospital. I take care of sick animals.

M : 안녕, 유미야. 오랜만이야.
W : 안녕, 스티브. 너 요즘 어떤 일을 하니?
M : 나는 한 초등학교에서 학생들을 가르쳐. 너는 어때?
W : 오, 나는 한 동물 병원에서 일해. 나는 아픈 동물들을 돌보고 있어.
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◈ 안좋은 소식

W : Hey, Minsu, what's wrong (with you)?
M : I just got[heard] some bad news.
W : What is it?
M : My father had a car accident.
W : Oh, really? I'm so sorry.
M : I have to go[get] to the hospital right now.

W : 안녕, 민수야,  무슨 안좋은 일 있니?
M : 나는 방금 안 좋은 소식을 들었어.
W : 그게 뭔데?
M:  나의 아버지께서 자동차 사고를 당하셨어.
W : 오, 정말? 안됐구나.
M : 나는 지금 당장 병원에 가야만 해.

 ◈ 기차표 예매

W : May(or Can) I help you?
M : Yes, I'd like to buy a ticket to Gwangju.
W : What time do you want to leave? There are trains at 6:00 p.m. and 8:00 p.m.
M : 6:00 p.m., please. How much is it?
W : 10,000 won.

W : 도와드릴까요?
M : 네, 광주에 가는 표 한 장를 구입하고 싶습니다.
W : 몇 시에 떠나길 원하시나요? 오후 6 시와 8 시 기차가 있습니다.
M : 6 시 기차로 하겠습니다.. 얼마입니까?
W : 10,000 원입니다.

◈ 주말 일상

W : I never get up early on weekends. I like to stay in bed. How about you?
M : I wake up early on Sundays.  I usually go swimming.

W : 나는 주말마다 절대 일찍 일어나지 않아. 나는 침대에 있는 게 좋아. 너는 어때?
M : 나는 일요일마다 일찍 일어나. 나는 보통 수영하러 가
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 ◈ 현재의 활동

W : Tony, are you busy now?
M : No, I am watching TV. Do you need any help?
W : Yes, would(or can / could) you water the flowers? I am busy washing the dishes.
M : Sure.

W : 토니, 너 지금 바쁘니?
M : 아니, 나는 TV 를 보고 있는 중이야. 도움이 필요해?
W : 그래, 그 꽃들에게 물을 좀 줄래? 나는 설거지 하느라 바쁘거든.
M : 알았어.

 ◈ 감기, 진료

M : Are you OK, Sujin?
W : No. I don't feel well. I have a headache.
M : Sorry to hear that. Why don't you take some medicine?
W : I think I should. Thanks.
M : You're welcome.

M : 너 괜찮니, 수진아?
W : 아니오, 저는 몸이 좋지 않아요. 저는 머리가 아파요.
M : 그 얘길 들으니 안됐구나. 약을 좀 먹어 보는 게 어떻겠니?
W : 저는 그렇게 해야 할 것 같아요. 고마워요.
M : 천만에.

W : What's the matter?
M : I have a headache, and I have a fever.
W : Let me see, you have a bad cold. Take this medicine three times a day.
M : Thank you.

W : 뭐가 문제인가요?
M : 머리가 아프고, 열이 납니다.
W : 어디 봅시다, 독감에 걸리셨네요. 이 약을 하루에 세 번 복용하세요.
M : 감사합니다.

 ◈ 여행 떠나기

W : When will you leave for New York?
M : My plane leaves at 2 p.m. from Incheon International Airport. What time is it now?
W : It's 11.
M : Oh really? I think I should go now.
W : Hurry up! There could be heavy traffic.

W : 너 뉴욕으로 언제 떠날거니?
M : 내 비행기가 인천국제공항에서 오후 2 시에 떠나. 지금 몇시니?
W : 11 시야.
M : 오, 정말? 나는 지금 가야할 것 같다.
W : 서둘러! 교통량이 많을지도 몰라.
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◈ 불평하기

M : Who is it?
W : It's Judy from next door.
M : Hi, I'm John. What's the matter?
W : I can't sleep because it's too noisy. What's going on in there?
M : Oh, I'm sorry. I just moved in today. I'm almost finished hammering.
W : OK. Please hurry

M : 누구세요?
W : 옆집에서 온 주디입니다.
M : 안녕하세요, 저는 존입니다. 무슨 문제가 있나요?
W : 너무 시끄러워서 잠을 잘 수가 없습니다. 거기서 무순일이 벌어지고 있는 거죠?
M : 오, 죄송합니다. 저는 오늘 막 이사 왔습니다. 망치질이 거의 끝나갑니다.
W : 알겠어요. 서둘러 주세요.

 ◈ 인물 묘사

M : Is this your mother, Sara?
W : No, she's my mom's best friend. My mom has long curly hair, and she is tall and thin.
M : Is she wearing glasses and pants?
W : That's right.

M : 이 분이 너의 어머니시니, 사라?
W : 아니. 그녀는 내 엄마의 가장 친한 친구야. 나의 엄마는 긴 곱슬머리이셔, 그리고 키가 크고 마르셨어.
M : 그녀는 안경과 바지를 착용하고 계시니?
W : 맞아.

◈ 분실물 찾기

W : Washington Public Library. How can I help you?
M : Hi. I think I left my umbrella there. Did you see one?
W : Is it a black one with yellow stripes?
M : Yes, that's mine. Where was it?
W : I found it on the counter.
M : Thank you. I'll come there right now. See you in a minute.

W : 워싱턴 공립 도서관입니다. 어떻게 도와드릴까요?
M : 안녕하세요. 제가 그곳에 제 우산을 두고 온 것 같아요. 혹시 보셨나요?
W : 그것이 노란색 줄무늬들을 가진 검은 건가요?
M : 네, 제 것이에요. 어디에 있었나요?
W : 카운터 위에서 그것을 찾았습니다.
M : 감사합니다. 제가 지금 당장 그곳에 가겠습니다. 잠시 후에 뵙겠습니다.
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◈ 공항에서

W : Here's my ticket for New York.
M : All right. Do you have any bags to check?
W : No, I just have a small bag and my dog.
M : Your dog? I'm sorry, ma'am, you can't take a dog on the bus.
W : Oh, really? I didn't know that. Then, I'll cancel my trip.

W : 여기 뉴욕행 제 표가 있습니다.
M : 알겠습니다. 검사해야 할 어떤 가방들이 있나요?
W : 아니오, 저는 단지 작은 가방 하나와 개를 데리고 있습니다.
M :  개라구요? 죄송합니다만, 손님, 당신은 버스에 개를 데리고 탈 수 없습니다.
W : 오, 정말요? 몰랐네요. 그럼 나의 여행을 취소할게요

◈ 우체국에서

W : Can I help you?
M : I want to send this letter to England. (= I'd like to send ~)
W : Would you like to send it by airmail?
M : How much will it cost?
W : It will cost you $2.
M : OK. Here you are.

W : 도와드릴까요?
M : 나는 이 편지를 영국으로 보내기를 원합니다.
W : 그것을 항공우편으로 보내시겠습니까?
M : 비용이 얼마나 들까요?
W : 2달러입니다.
M : 알겠습니다. 여기 있습니다.


